
Riverwood Community 
Development District  

February 21, 2023 

AGENDA PACKAGE 

Agenda Page 1



RIVERWOOD COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 

Board of Supervisors District Staff 

Michael Spillane, Chairman  Justin Faircloth, District Manager 

Donald Myhrberg, Vice-Chairman Scott Rudacille, District Attorney 

Dolly Syrek, Treasurer/Assistant Secretary 

Greg Gipp, Assistant Secretary 

Dr. Cameron McKee, Assistant Secretary 

District Office: Meeting Location: 

Inframark, Community Management Services Riverwood Activity Center 

210 North University Drive, Suite 702 4250 Riverwood Drive 

Coral Springs, Florida 33071 Port Charlotte, Florida 33953 

(954) 603-0033 (941) 979-8720

Regular Meeting Agenda  

Tuesday, February 21, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. 

1. Call to Order and Roll Call

2. Approval of the February 21, 2023 Agenda

3. Audience Comments on Agenda Items

4. Approval of Consent Agenda

A. Approval of the Minutes of January 12, 2023 Special Meeting

B. Approval of the Minutes of January 17, 2023 Meeting

C. Acceptance of the Financial Report and Check Registers as of January 2023

5. On-Site Manager’s Report

6. Monthly Client Report

7. Safety and Access Control Supervisor Report

8. District Manager’s Report

A. Follow Up Items

9. Attorney’s Report

10. Old Business

A. RCDD/RCA Activity Center Agreement

B. RCA Attorney January 24, 2023 Response

C. Activity Center Maintenance Vendor Contracts Discussion

i. RCA Contracts

ii. Riverwood Landscape & Enhancement Proposal

11. New Business

A. Tennis Courts Lighting Survey

B. Rule Change Discussion

i. Deposit Review

C. Office/Storage Space Discussion

12. Other Committee Reports

A. Beach Club Committee:  Mr. Spillane

B. Campus Committee:  Ms. Syrek

Agenda Page 2



Riverwood CDD  

February 21, 2023 Agenda 

Page 2 

 

 

District Office:  Meeting Location: 
Inframark, Community Management Services  Riverwood Activity Center 
210 North University Drive, Suite 702  4250 Riverwood Drive 
Coral Springs, Florida 33071  Port Charlotte, Florida 33953 
(954) 603-0033  (941) 979-8720 
 

2 

i. Campus Pool Area Email Exchange 

C. Dog Park Committee:  Dr. McKee 

D. Environmental Committee:  Mr. Myhrberg 

E. Finance Committee:  Ms. Syrek 

F. RV Park Committee Report:  Mr. Myhrberg 

G. Safety & Access Control Committee:  Dr. McKee 

H. Sewer Committee:  Mr. Gipp 

I. Strategic Planning Committee:  Mr. Myhrberg 

J. Water/Utility Committee:  Mr. Spillane 

13. Supervisor Comments 

14. Audience Comments 

15. Adjournment  

 

The next scheduled meeting is scheduled to be held Tuesday, March 21, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. 

 

073 

Agenda Page 3



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fourth Order of Business 

Agenda Page 4



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4A 

Agenda Page 5



Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF SPECIAL MEETING 1 

RIVERWOOD 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

4 

A special meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Riverwood Community 5 

Development District was held on Tuesday, January 12, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. at the Riverwood 6 

Activity Center, located at 4250 Riverwood Drive, Port Charlotte, Florida. 7 

8 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 9 

10 

11 

Michael Spillane Chairman 12 

Donald Myhrberg Vice Chairman 13 

Dolly Syrek Treasurer/Assistant Secretary 14 

Gregg Gipp Assistant Secretary 15 

Dr. Cameron McKee Assistant Secretary (via Phone) 16 

17 

Also present were: 18 

19 

Justin Faircloth District Manager 20 

John Mercer Riverwood CDD 21 

Residents 22 

23 

Following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken. 24 

25 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call 26 

• Mr. Faircloth called the meeting to order and called the roll. A quorum was established.27 

28 

On MOTION by Ms. Syrek seconded by Mr. Myhrberg with all in favor 29 

Dr. McKee was authorized to attend the meeting and vote via phone. 30 

31 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the January 12, 2023 Agenda 32 

33 

On MOTION by Ms. Syrek seconded by Mr. Myhrberg with all in 34 

favor, the January 12, 2023 Agenda was approved. 35 

36 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments on Agenda Items 37 

• Residents commented on the Maintenance Agreement between the CDD and RCA.38 

39 

40 

41 

42 

43 

Agenda Page 6



January 12, 2023 Riverwood CDD 

2 
Unapproved Minutes 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Discussion on the Systems & Facilities 44 

Operations, Landscape Maintenance & 45 

Activity Center Agreement between the 46 

CDD & RCA 47 

• The Board requested Mr. Faircloth send out the draft agreement as presented at the48 

meeting to the RCA for consideration.49 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Comments 50 

• None.51 

52 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 53 

• Residents commented on the Maintenance Agreement between the RCA and the54 

CDD.55 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 56 

57 

On MOTION by Mr. Gipp seconded by Ms. Syrek with all in favor 58 

the meeting was adjourned at 3:52 p.m. 59 

60 

61 

____________________________________ 62 

Michael Spillane 63 

Chairman 64 

Agenda Page 7



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4B 

Agenda Page 8



Unapproved Minutes 

MINUTES OF MEETING 1 

RIVERWOOD 2 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT 3 

4 

The regular meeting of the Board of Supervisors of the Riverwood Community 5 

Development District was held on Tuesday, January 17, 2023 at 2:00 p.m. at the Riverwood 6 

Activity Center, located at 4250 Riverwood Drive, Port Charlotte, Florida. 7 

8 

Present and constituting a quorum were: 9 

10 

11 

Michael Spillane Chairman 12 

Donald Myhrberg Vice Chairman 13 

Dolly Syrek Treasurer/Assistant Secretary 14 

Dr. Cameron McKee Assistant Secretary 15 

Gregg Gipp Assistant Secretary 16 

17 

Also present were: 18 

19 

Justin Faircloth District Manager 20 

Scott Rudacille District Counsel 21 

John Mercer Riverwood CDD 22 

Ronald Lesinski Riverwood CDD 23 

Mitch Gilbert Florida Utility Solutions 24 

Members of the Public 25 

26 

Following is a summary of the discussions and actions taken. 27 

28 

FIRST ORDER OF BUSINESS Call to Order and Roll Call 29 

• Mr. Faircloth called the meeting to order and called the roll. A quorum was established.30 

31 

SECOND ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of the January 17, 2023 Agenda 32 

33 

On MOTION by Ms. Syrek seconded by Mr. Myhrberg with all in 34 

favor, the January 17, 2023 Agenda, adding MOU Discussion 35 

under Old Business was approved as amended. 36 

37 

THIRD ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments on Agenda Items 38 

• None.39 

40 

FOURTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Approval of Consent Agenda 41 

A. Approval of the Minutes of December 20, 2022 Meeting42 

B. Acceptance of the Financial Report and Check Registers as of December 202243 

Agenda Page 9



January 17, 2023 Riverwood CDD 

2 
Unapproved Minutes 

44 

On MOTION by Ms. Syrek, seconded by Mr. Myhrberg with all in 45 

favor the Consent Agenda was approved. 46 

47 

SIXTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Monthly Client Report 48 

• Mr. Gilbert reviewed the report with the Board and answered questions.49 

50 

SEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Safety and Access Control Supervisor 51 

Report 52 

• Mr. Mercer presented his report.53 

FIFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS On-Site Manager’s Report 54 

• Mr. Mercer presented his report.55 

56 

EIGHTH ORDER OF BUSINESS District Manager’s Report 57 

• Mr. Faircloth gave an update on the inactive deposits list.58 

59 

NINTH ORDER OF BUSINESS     Attorney’s Report 60 

• Mr. Rudacille presented his report.61 

• Updates were given on the Harborside Agreement and Evatech issue.62 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Engineer’s Report 63 

A. FL GIS Solutions, LLC Revised Proposal64 

• Discussion ensued regarding the FL GIS Solutions, LLC revised proposal and irrigation65 

moving forward.66 

On MOTION by Ms. Syrek, seconded by Mr. Myhrberg with all in 67 

favor the FL GIS Solutions Revised proposal for $17,000 was 68 

approved. 69 

70 

ELEVENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Old Business 71 

• Mr. Spillane noted the RCA discontinued BrightView’s work on CDD Property in72 

November. Board members will attend the RCA meeting next month to confirm.73 

A. MOU Discussion74 

• Mr. Faircloth noted he spoke with Mr. Rudacille regarding a shorter agreement which75 

covers everything the District owns.76 

• Discussion ensued regarding the tennis courts, fencing and lighting.77 

• The Board Agreed to allow the RCA to continue managing the tennis courts.78 

• Mr. Spillane requested to have all the RCA’s contracts reviewed.79 

• The District wants to take over landscaping of District property, and maintenance80 

Agenda Page 10



January 17, 2023 Riverwood CDD 

3 
Unapproved Minutes 

contracts for the Activity Center, with the exception of pickleball, Tennis and croquet 81 

courts. 82 

• The bidding threshold is $195,000.83 

TWELFTH ORDER OF BUSINESS New Business 84 

A. A Discussion of RCA Board Members on CDD Committees85 

• Ms. Syrek inquired if RCA Board members can vote on CDD Committees.86 

• Mr. Rudacille noted that the only liaison is from the CDD Board on those committees,87 

otherwise, they are appointed committee members who have the right to vote.88 

THIRTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Other Committee Reports 89 

A. Beach Club Committee:  Mr. Spillane90 

• Mr. Spillane provided an update.91 

B. Campus Committee:  Ms. Syrek92 

• Ms. Syrek provided an update.93 

C. Dog Park Committee:  Mr. McKee94 

i. Appointment of Alice Brown95 

• Mr. McKee provided an update.96 

97 

On MOTION by Mr. McKee, seconded by Mr. Gipp with all in favor 98 

Alice Brown was appointed as a new Member to the Dog Park 99 

Committee. 100 

101 

D. Environmental Committee:  Mr. Myhrberg102 

i. Draft 2022 Year End Report103 

• Mr. Myhrberg provided an update.104 

E. Finance Committee:  Ms. Syrek105 

• Ms. Syrek provided an update.106 

F. RV Park Committee Report:  Mr. Myhrberg107 

• Mr. Myhrberg presented his report.108 

G. Safety & Access Control Committee:  Dr. McKee109 

• Mr. Knaub presented his report.110 

H. Sewer Committee: Mr. Gipp111 

• Mr. Gipp presented his report.112 

I. Strategic Planning Committee:  Mr. Myhrberg113 

• Mr. Myhrberg presented his report.114 

J. Water/Utility Committee:  Mr. Spillane115 

• Mr. Spillane presented his report.116 

117 

118 

Agenda Page 11



January 17, 2023 Riverwood CDD 

4 
Unapproved Minutes 

FOURTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Supervisor Comments 119 

• None.120 

121 

FIFTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Audience Comments 122 

• Resident comments were received regarding the District clean-up, road repairs, RCA123 

and CCD responsibilities, tennis court repairs and non-resident entrance into the124 

community.125 

126 

SIXTEENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS Adjournment 127 

128 

On MOTION by Ms. Syrek, seconded by McKee, with all in favor, 129 

the meeting was adjourned. 130 

131 
132 

133 

134 

135 

____________________________________ 136 

Michael Spillane 137 

Chairman 138 

Agenda Page 12



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

4C 

Agenda Page 13



Prepared by

Riverwood Community Development District

Financial Statements

January 31, 2023

(unaudited)

Agenda Page 14



Report

Page #

Balance Sheet ……………………………………………………………………………………………………………...……….1 - 2

Revenues, Expenditures and Change in Fund Balances

General Fund …………………………………………………………………………………….3 - 5

General Fund - Reserves …………………………………………………………………………………….6 - 7

Beach Club Fund (Operations) ………………………………………………………………………………………………….8 - 9

Beach Club Fund - Reserves …………………………………………………………………………………………..10

Beach Club Fund (Loan) …………………………………………………………………………………………..11

Debt Service Fund …………………………………………………………………………………………………………12

Revenues, Expenses and Change in Net Position

Enterprise Fund (Breakdown by Services) …………………………………………………………………………………….13

Water Services …………………………………………………………………………………….14 - 15

Sewer Services ………………………………………………………………………………………………….16 - 17

Irrigation Services …………………………………………………………………………………………..18 - 19

Reserve Fund …………………………………………………………………………………………………………20

Shared Services Fund …………………………………………………………………………………………………………21

Table of Contents

Agenda Page 15



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Account Description

General 

Fund

General 

Fund - 

Reserves

Beach Club 

Fund 

(Operations)

Beach Club 

Fund 

(Reserve)

Beach Club 

Fund 

(Loan)

Debt 

Service 

Fund 

(Valley 

National)

Enterprise 

Fund

Enterprise 

Fund - 

Reserves

Pooled

Cash

Fund Total

Assets

Current Assets

Cash - Checking Account -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                  -$                 2,254,293$  2,254,293$     

Equity in Pooled Cash 1,150,859 2,178,208 196,406 77,686 - - 486,072 1,852,861 (5,942,092) -

Accounts Receivable - - - - - - 189,730 - - 189,730

Accounts Receivable > 120 - - - - - - 316 - - 316

FEMA Receivable 195,603 - 9,200 - - - 29,885 - - 234,688

Loan Due from Beach Fund 165,492 - - - - - - - - 165,492

Investments:

Money Market Account - - - - - - - - 3,687,799 3,687,799

Reserve Fund - - - - - 131,302 - - - 131,302

Revenue Fund - - - - - 797,561 - - - 797,561

Total Current Assets 1,511,954 2,178,208 205,606 77,686 - 928,863 706,003 1,852,861 - 7,461,181

Noncurrent Assets

Fixed Assets

Land - - - - - - 343,998 - - 343,998

Buildings - - - - - - 1,413,584 - - 1,413,584

Accum Depr - Buildings - - - - - - (829,875) - - (829,875)

Infrastructure - - - - - - 10,649,119 - - 10,649,119

Accum Depr - Infrastructure - - - - - - (4,210,623) - - (4,210,623)

Equipment and Furniture - - - - - - 37,977 - - 37,977

Accum Depr - Equip/Furniture - - - - - - (12,203) - - (12,203)

Total Noncurrent Assets - - - - - - 7,391,977 - - 7,391,977

Total Assets 1,511,954$  2,178,208$  205,606$     77,686$       -$                 928,863$     8,097,980$   1,852,861$  -$                 14,853,158$   

Balance Sheet
January 31, 2023

- 1 -

Agenda Page 16



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Account Description

General 

Fund

General 

Fund - 

Reserves

Beach Club 

Fund 

(Operations)

Beach Club 

Fund 

(Reserve)

Beach Club 

Fund 

(Loan)

Debt 

Service 

Fund 

(Valley 

National)

Enterprise 

Fund

Enterprise 

Fund - 

Reserves

Pooled

Cash

Fund Total

Balance Sheet
January 31, 2023

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable 2,858$         -$                 501$            -$                 -$                 -$                 793$             -$                 -$                 4,152$            

Accrued Expenses 14,103 - 569 - - - 84,807 - - 99,479

Sales Tax Payable 12 329 801 - - - - - - 1,142

Deposits - - - - - - 199,759 - - 199,759

Loan Due to General Fund - - - - 165,492 - - - - 165,492

Total Current Liabilities 16,973 329 1,871 - 165,492 - 285,359 - - 470,024

Total Liabilities 16,973 329 1,871 - 165,492 - 285,359 - - 470,024

Fund Balances / Net Position

Restricted for:

Debt Service - - - - - 928,863 - - - 928,863

Assigned to:

Operating Reserves 350,000 - - - - - - - - 350,000

Reserves - Activity Center - 561,835 - - - - - - - 561,835

Reserves - Settlement - 254,323 - - - - - - - 254,323

Environmental Services - 415,445 - - - - - - - 415,445

Reserves - Roadways - 811,268 - - - - - - - 811,268

Reserves - RV Park - 135,008 - - - - - - - 135,008

Reserves - Beach Club - - - 77,686 - - - - - 155,372

Unassigned: 1,144,981 - 203,735 - (165,492) - - - - 1,183,224

Net Investment in capital assets - - - - - - 7,391,976 - - 7,391,976

Reserves - Emergency - - - - - - - 240,667 - 240,667

Reserves - Sewer System - - - - - - - 1,300,832 - 1,300,832

Reserves - Water System - - - - - - - 126,544 - 126,544

Reserves - Irrigation System - - - - - - - 184,818 - 184,818

Unrestricted/Unreserved - - - - - - 420,645 - - 420,645

Total Fund Balances / Net Position 1,494,981 2,177,879 203,735 77,686 (165,492) 928,863 7,812,621 1,852,861 - 14,305,448

Total Liabilities & Fund Balances / 

Net Position 1,511,954$  2,178,208$  205,606$     77,686$       -$                 928,863$     8,097,980$   1,852,861$  -$                 14,853,158$   

- 2 -

Agenda Page 17



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

General Fund

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 183,301$     219,813$     (36,512)$      1,120,405$  1,228,836$  (108,431)$   -8.8% 1,354,155$  

Special Assmnts- Discounts (5,392) (8,872) 3,480 (42,156) (49,597) 7,441 -15.0% (54,654)

Non-Resident Members (1,650) 833 (2,483) 5,350 3,332 2,018 60.6% 10,000

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 1,831 42 1,789 3,732 168 3,564 2121.1% 500

Interest - Investments 4,610 141 4,469 9,507 564 8,943 1585.7% 1,693

Total Revenue / Other Sources 182,700 211,957 (29,257) 1,096,837 1,183,303 (86,466) -7.3% 1,311,694

Expenditures

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 434 225 (209) 1,156 900 (256) -28.5% 2,696

Payroll-Salaries 1,671 1,644 (27) 6,482 6,576 94 1.4% 19,724

ProfServ-Engineering - 542 542 - 2,168 2,168 n/a 6,500

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 6,703 6,703 (0) 26,812 26,812 (0) 0.0% 80,437

ProfServ-Legal Services (404) 2,917 3,321 10,056 11,668 1,612 13.8% 35,000

ProfServ-Trustee Fees - - - - 3,717 3,717 n/a 3,717

Auditing Services - - - - 1,800 1,800 n/a 3,600

Communications-Other 487 250 (237) 1,490 1,000 (490) -49.0% 3,000

Insurance 49 - (49) 22,612 20,712 (1,900) -9.2% 20,712

Misc-Non Ad Valorem Taxes - 208 208 - 832 832 n/a 2,500

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 3,558 4,220 662 21,565 23,594 2,029 8.6% 26,000

Website Hosting/Email services - 275 275 1,601 1,100 (501) -45.6% 3,300

Janitorial /Office supplies - 167 167 - 668 668 n/a 2,000

Office Expense 322 1,000 678 1,274 4,000 2,726 68.2% 12,000

Misc-Credit Card Fees 4 103 99 219 412 193 46.9% 1,232

Total Administration 12,824 18,254 5,430 93,267 105,959 12,692 12.0% 222,418

Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month

- 3 -

Agenda Page 18



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

General Fund

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month

Environmental Services

Payroll-Environmental Services 3,277 3,533 256 14,659 14,132 (527) -3.7% 42,391

Contracts-Preserve Maintenance - 2,917 2,917 - 11,668 11,668 n/a 35,000

Contracts-Lakes 1,850 2,017 167 7,400 8,068 668 8.3% 24,200

ProfServ-Consultants 900 1,250 350 1,500 5,000 3,500 70.0% 15,000

Electricity - General 256 200 (56) 1,025 800 (225) -28.2% 2,400

Utility - Water & Sewer 137 167 30 447 668 221 33.1% 2,000

R&M-Sidewalks - 833 833 - 3,332 3,332 n/a 10,000

R&M-Storm Drain Cleaning - 1,250 1,250 - 5,000 5,000 n/a 15,000

R&M-Preserves - 5,000 5,000 785 20,000 19,215 96.1% 60,000

R&M-Road Scaping 46 833 787 248 3,332 3,084 92.6% 10,000

R&M-Roads,Signage,Striping - 917 917 - 3,668 3,668 n/a 11,000

R&M-Lakes,Bank Erosion,Planting - 417 417 - 1,668 1,668 n/a 5,000

Misc-Contingency - 1,763 1,763 - 7,052 7,052 n/a 21,157

Total Environmental Services 6,466 21,097 14,631 26,064 84,388 58,324 69.1% 253,148

Activity Center Campus

P/R-Board of Supervisors 323 167 (156) 862 668 (194) -29.0% 2,000

Payroll-Salaries 2,075 2,055 (20) 8,400 8,220 (180) -2.2% 24,656

Payroll-Maintenance 1,272 1,449 177 4,891 5,796 905 15.6% 17,391

Payroll-Gatehouse 21,208 20,467 (740) 77,657 81,870 4,213 5.1% 245,609

Electricity - General 4,171 4,222 51 15,106 16,888 1,782 10.5% 50,666

Utility - Water & Sewer 1,159 1,333 174 3,761 5,332 1,571 29.5% 16,000

Insurance - Property 76 - (76) 35,047 32,100 (2,947) -9.2% 32,103

R&M-Pools 236 667 431 462 2,668 2,206 82.7% 8,000

R&M-Fitness Equipment 211 417 206 1,370 1,668 298 17.9% 5,000

R&M-Gate 576 2,083 1,507 2,596 8,333 5,737 68.8% 25,000

R&M-Gatehouse/Security 41,895 2,083 (39,812) 45,335 8,333 (37,001) -444.0% 25,000

Op Supplies - Gatehouse (199) 1,250 1,449 201 5,000 4,799 96.0% 15,000

R&M-Activity Campus Buildings (4,627) 3,333 7,960 16,732 13,332 (3,400) -25.5% 40,000

Misc-Special Projects - 6,373 6,373 - 25,492 25,492 n/a 76,477

Tools and Equipment 110 1,250 1,140 3,052 5,000 1,948 39.0% 15,000

Operating Supplies - 167 167 - 668 668 n/a 2,000

Misc-Contingency - 1,520 1,520 - 6,080 6,080 n/a 18,241

Total Activity Center Campus 68,486 48,837 (19,649) 215,471 227,448 11,977 5.3% 618,143

Total Expenditures 87,776 88,188 412 334,803 417,795 82,993 19.9% 1,093,709

- 4 -

Agenda Page 19



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

General Fund

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month

Transfers Out

Reserve - Activty Center Campus 6,499 6,499 0 25,995 25,996 1 0.0% 77,985

Reserve - Roadways 10,833 10,833 (0) 43,333 43,332 (1) 0.0% 130,000

Reserve - Environmental Services 833 833 (0) 3,333 3,332 (1) 0.0% 10,000

Total Transfers Out 18,165 18,165 (0) 72,662 72,660 (2) 0.0% 217,985

Total Expenditures & Transfers 105,941 106,353 412 407,464 490,455 82,991 16.9% 1,311,694

Net Surplus (Deficit) 76,759$       105,604$     (28,845)$      689,373 692,848 (3,475) -

Fund balance as of Oct 01, 2022 805,608 805,608 - 805,608

Fund Balance as of Jan 31, 2023 1,494,981$  1,498,455$  (3,475)$        805,608$     

- 5 -

Agenda Page 20



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

General Fund - Reserves

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

RV Parking Lot Revenue 4,700 4,750 (50) 52,907 19,000 33,907 178.5% 57,000

Transfer In - Roadways 10,833 10,833 0 43,333 43,332 1 0.0% 130,000

Transfer In - Environmental Services 833 833 0 3,333 3,332 1 0.0% 10,000

Transfer In - Activity Center Campus 6,499 6,499 (0) 25,995 25,996 (1) 0.0% 77,985

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 30 - 30 38 - 38 n/a -

Interest - Investments 6,509 - 6,509 22,649 - 22,649 n/a -

Total Revenue / Other Sources 29,405 22,915 6,490 148,256 91,660 56,596 61.7% 274,985

Expenditures

Activity Center Campus

Reserve-Activity Center Campus - 6,499 6,499 - 25,996 25,996 100.0% 77,985

R&M-Activity Center - - - 9,870 - (9,870) n/a -

Total Activity Center Campus - 6,499 6,499 9,870 25,996 16,126 62.0% 77,985

Roadways

Reserve - Roadways - 10,833 10,833 - 43,332 43,332 100.0% 130,000

Total Roadways - 10,833 10,833 - 43,332 43,332 100.0% 130,000

RV Park

Reserve - RV Park - 2,506 2,506 - 10,024 10,024 100.0% 30,070

Payroll- RV Park 961 1,000 39 4,195 4,000 (195) -4.9% 12,000

Materials & Supplies - 417 417 - 1,668 1,668 100.0% 5,000

Capital Projects - 708 708 - 2,832 2,832 100.0% 8,500

Postage and Freight - 3 3 - 12 12 100.0% 40

Fuel, Gasoline and Oil - 8 8 - 32 32 100.0% 90

Credit Card Fees 98 108 10 1,230 432 (798) -184.7% 1,300

Total RV Park 1,059 4,750 3,691 5,425 19,000 13,575 71.4% 57,000

Environmental Services

Reserve - Environmental Services - 833 833 - 3,332 3,332 100.0% 10,000

Total Environmental Services - 833 833 - 3,332 3,332 100.0% 10,000

Total Expenditures 1,059 22,915 21,856 15,295 91,660 76,365 83.3% 274,985

Net Surplus (Deficit) 28,346$       -$                 28,346$       132,961 - 132,961 -

Fund balance as of Oct 01, 2022 2,044,918 2,044,918 - 2,044,918

Fund Balance as of Jan 31, 2023 2,177,879$  2,044,918$  132,961$     2,044,918$  

Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month

- 6 -

Agenda Page 21



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

General Fund - Reserves

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month

Reserve Balances

Reserve Name Beg Bal. Additions Interest Ending Bal.

Environmental Services Reserve $407,706 $3,333 $4,405 $0 $415,445

Activity Center Campus Reserve $539,731 $26,033 $5,941 $9,870 $561,835

Roadways Reserve $759,490 $43,333 $8,445 $0 $811,268

Construction Settlement Reserve $251,618 $0 $2,705 $0 $254,323

RV Park Reserve $86,373 $52,907 $1,153 $5,425 $135,008

Total $2,044,918 $125,606 $22,649 $15,295 $2,177,879

Expenses

- 7 -

Agenda Page 22



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Beach Club Fund - Operations

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Membership Dues 10,200$       -$                 10,200$       161,500$     161,500$     -$                 0.0% 161,500$     

Initiation Fees 900 250 650 1,300 1,000 300 30.0% 3,000

Amenities Revenue 297 83 214 297 332 (35) -10.5% 1,000

Summer Membership - 625 (625) - 2,500 (2,500) -100.0% 7,500

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 50 42 8 149 168 (19) -11.6% 500

Interest - Investments 233 17 216 818 68 750 1102.5% 200

Total Revenue / Other Sources 11,680 1,017 10,663 164,063 165,568 (1,505) -0.9% 173,700

Expenditures

Beach Club Operations

Payroll-Administrative 463 417 (46) 1,705 1,668 (37) -2.2% 5,000

Payroll-Attendants 4,642 6,195 1,553 18,323 24,780 6,457 26.1% 74,339

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 429 429 (0) 1,717 1,716 (1) 0.0% 5,150

Auditing Services - - - - 900 900 100.0% 1,800

Contracts-On-Site Maintenance 85 83 (2) 85 332 247 74.4% 1,000

Contracts-Landscape - 250 250 - 1,000 1,000 100.0% 3,000

Communication - Telephone 217 208 (9) 604 832 228 27.4% 2,500

Utility  - General 151 75 (76) 346 300 (46) -15.5% 900

Utility - Refuse Removal 73 75 2 293 300 7 2.5% 900

Utility - Water & Sewer 71 150 79 277 600 323 53.9% 1,800

Insurance 42 - (42) 19,100 17,495 (1,605) -9.2% 17,495

R&M-Buildings - 417 417 1,442 1,668 226 13.6% 5,000

R&M-Equipment 475 417 (58) 610 1,668 1,058 63.4% 5,000

Preventative Maint-Security Systems - 146 146 - 584 584 100.0% 1,750

Misc-Special Projects - 250 250 - 1,000 1,000 100.0% 3,000

Misc-Web Hosting - 46 46 - 184 184 100.0% 550

Misc-Taxes - - - - 756 756 100.0% 756

Misc-Contingency - 260 260 - 1,040 1,040 100.0% 3,116

Credit Card Fees 211 417 207 4,062 1,668 (2,394) -143.5% 5,000

Office Supplies - 17 17 - 68 68 100.0% 200

Op Supplies - General 196 83 (113) 254 332 78 23.4% 1,000

Total Beach Club Operations 7,055 9,935 2,880 48,817 58,891 10,074 17.1% 139,256

Current Month Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

- 8 -

Agenda Page 23



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Beach Club Fund - Operations

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Current Month Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Debt Service

Principal Debt Retirement - - - - - - n/a 23,617

Interest Expense - - - - - - n/a 827

Total Debt Service - - - - - - n/a 24,444

Total Expenditures 7,055 9,935 2,880 48,817 58,891 10,074 17.1% 163,700

Transfer Out

Reserve - Beach Club 833 833 (0) 3,333 3,332 (1) 0.0% 10,000

Total Transfer Out 833 833 (0) 3,333 3,332 (1) 0.0% 10,000

Total Expenditures & Transfer 7,888 10,768 2,880 52,150 62,223 10,073 16.2% 173,700

Net Surplus (Deficit) 3,791$         (9,751)$        13,542$       111,913 103,345 8,568 -

Fund balance as of Oct 01, 2022 91,822 91,822 - 91,822

Fund Balance as of Jan 31, 2023 203,735$     195,167$     8,568$         91,822$       

- 9 -

Agenda Page 24



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Beach Club Fund - Reserves

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Transfer in - Beach Club 833$            833$            0$                3,333$         3,332$         1$                0.0% 10,000$       

Total Revenue / Other Sources 833 833 0 3,333 3,332 1 0.0% 10,000

Expenditures

Reserve - Beach Club - 833 833 - 3,332 3,332 100.0% 10,000

Total Expenditures - 833 833 - 3,332 3,332 0.0% 10,000

Net Surplus (Deficit) 833$            -$                 833$            3,333 - 3,333 -

Fund balance as of Oct 01, 2022 74,352 74,352 - 74,352

Fund Balance as of Jan 31, 2023 77,686$       74,352$       3,333$         74,352$       

Reserve Balances

Reserve Name Beg Bal. Additions Interest Ending Bal.

Beach Club Reserve $74,353 $3,333 $0 $0 $77,686

Total $74,353 $3,333 $0 $0 $77,686

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month Year-to-Date

Expenses

- 10 -

Agenda Page 25



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Beach Club Fund - Loan

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Total Revenue / Other Sources - - - - - - n/a -

Expenditures

Total Expenditures - - - - - - n/a -

Net Surplus (Deficit) -$                 -$                 -$                 - - - -

Fund balance as of Oct 01, 2022 (165,492) (165,492) - (165,492)

Fund Balance as of Jan 31, 2023 (165,492)$   (165,492)$   -$                 (165,492)$   

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month Year-to-Date

- 11 -

Agenda Page 26



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Series 2018 Debt Service Fund (Valley National Bank)

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Special Assmnts- Tax Collector 98,259$       113,370$     (15,111)$      600,597$     633,779$     (33,182)$      -5.2% 698,412$     

Special Assmnts- Discounts (2,891) (4,535) 1,644 (22,598) (25,351) 2,753 -10.9% (27,936)

Interest - Investments 1,074 42 1,032 3,775 168 3,607 2146.8% 500

Total Revenue / Other Sources 96,443 108,877 (12,434) 581,774 608,596 (26,822) -4.4% 670,976

Expenditures

Debt Service

Misc-Assessment Collection Cost 1,907 2,267 360 11,560 12,675 1,115 8.8% 13,968

Principal Debt Retirement - - - - - - n/a 440,000

Interest Expense - - - 111,934 111,934 (0) 0.0% 223,867

Total Debt Service 1,907 2,267 360 123,494 124,609 1,115 0.9% 677,835

Total Expenditures 1,907 2,267 360 123,494 124,609 1,115 0.9% 677,835

Net Surplus (Deficit) 94,535$       106,610$     (12,075)$      458,280 483,988 (25,707) (6,859)

Fund balance as of Oct 01, 2022 470,583 470,583 - 470,583

Fund Balance as of Jan 31, 2023 928,863$     954,571$     (25,707)$      463,724$     

Year-to-Date

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month

- 12 -

Agenda Page 27



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Breakdown by Utility Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Total Total

YTD YTD Variance % Adopted

Description Water Sewer Irrigation Actuals Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Base Charges for Services 154,497$     436,950$     77,626$       669,072$     665,564$     3,508$         0.5% 1,996,700$  

Usage Charges for Services 75,104 - - 75,104 69,724 5,380 7.7% 209,170

Standby Fees - 2,220 - 2,220 2,100 120 5.7% 6,300

Meter Fees - - - - 332 (332) -100.0% 1,000

Connection Fees - W/S - 5,000 - 5,000 - 5,000 0.0% -

Backflow Fees - - - - 10,088 (10,088) -100.0% 30,259

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 889 4,050 - 4,939 3,932 1,007 25.6% 11,800

Interest - Investments 823 1,535 344 2,701 268 2,433 907.9% 800

Total Revenue / Other Sources 231,313 449,755 77,969 759,037 752,008 7,029 0.9% 2,256,029

Expenses

Administration 18,155 70,417 7,219 95,792 116,279 20,487 17.6% 230,906

Utility Services 169,713 194,150 19,652 383,516 547,056 163,540 29.9% 1,641,123

Transfers Out 10,000 103,333 14,667 128,000 128,000 - 0.0% 384,000

Total Expenses 197,869 367,901 41,538 607,308 791,335 184,027 23.3% 2,256,029

Net Profit (Loss) 33,444$       81,854$       36,431$       151,729 (39,327) 191,056 -

Net Position as of Oct 01, 2022 7,660,892 7,660,892 - 7,660,892

Net Position as of Jan 31, 2023 7,812,621$  7,621,565$  191,056$     7,660,892$  

Utility Services

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

- 13 -

Agenda Page 28



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Water Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Water-Base Rate 38,638$       38,308$       330$            154,497$     153,232$     1,265$         0.8% 459,700$     

Water-Usage 23,329 17,431 5,898 75,104 69,724 5,380 7.7% 209,170

Backflow Fees - 2,522 (2,522) - 10,088 (10,088) -100.0% 30,259

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 151 150 1 889 600 289 48.2% 1,800

Interest - Investments 494 25 469 823 100 723 723.2% 300

Total Revenue / Other Sources 62,611 58,436 4,175 231,313 233,744 (2,431) -1.0% 701,229

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 444 229 (215) 1,183 916 (267) -29.2% 2,745

Payroll-Project Manager 1,715 1,667 (48) 6,997 6,668 (329) -4.9% 20,000

ProfServ-Engineering - 417 417 - 1,668 1,668 100.0% 5,000

ProfServ-Legal Services - 567 567 82 2,268 2,186 96.4% 6,800

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 456 456 (0) 1,825 1,824 (1) 0.0% 5,474

Auditing Services - - - - 1,530 1,530 100.0% 3,060

Postage and Freight - 26 26 - 104 104 100.0% 306

Insurance 18 - (18) 8,069 7,391 (678) -9.2% 7,391

Printing and Binding - 28 28 - 112 112 100.0% 340

Legal Advertising - 40 40 - 160 160 100.0% 485

Miscellaneous Services - 79 79 - 316 316 100.0% 949

Office Supplies - 9 9 - 36 36 100.0% 102

Total Administration 2,632 3,518 886 18,155 22,993 4,838 21.0% 52,652

Utility Services

ProfServ-Utility Billing 961 856 (105) 3,689 3,424 (265) -7.8% 10,266

Contracts-Other Services 3,887 4,482 595 17,332 17,928 596 3.3% 53,783

Utility - Base Rate 12,764 12,764 0 51,054 51,056 2 0.0% 153,162

Utility - Water-Usage 24,751 24,935 184 97,620 99,740 2,120 2.1% 299,218

Utility-CCU Admin Fee 4 4 (0) 17 16 (1) -7.3% 50

R&M-General - 4,625 4,625 - 18,500 18,500 100.0% 55,500

Misc-Licenses & Permits - 25 25 - 100 100 100.0% 300

Back Flow Preventors - 2,522 2,522 - 10,088 10,088 100.0% 30,259

Misc-Contingency - 1,337 1,337 - 5,348 5,348 100.0% 16,039

Total Utility Services 42,366 51,550 9,184 169,713 206,200 36,487 17.7% 618,577

Total Expenses 44,998 55,068 10,070 187,869 229,193 41,324 18.0% 671,229

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Year-to-DateCurrent Month

- 14 -

Agenda Page 29



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Water Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Year-to-DateCurrent Month

Transfers Out

Reserve - Water System 2,500 2,500 - 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 30,000

Total Transfers Out 2,500 2,500 - 10,000 10,000 - 0.0% 30,000

Total Expenses & Transfers 47,498 57,568 10,070 197,869 239,193 41,324 17.3% 701,229

Net Profit (Loss) 15,113$       868$            14,245$       33,444$       (5,449)$        38,893$       -$                 

- 15 -

Agenda Page 30



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Sewer Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Sewer Revenue 108,045$     108,250$     (205)$           436,950$     433,000$     3,950$         0.9% 1,299,000$  

Standby Fees 555 525 30 2,220 2,100 120 5.7% 6,300

Connection Fees - W/S 5,000 - 5,000 5,000 - 5,000 n/a -

Other Miscellaneous Revenues 688 833 (145) 4,050 3,332 718 21.5% 10,000

Interest - Investments 920 42 878 1,535 168 1,367 813.5% 500

Total Revenue / Other Sources 115,209 109,650 5,559 449,755 438,600 11,155 2.5% 1,315,800

Expenses

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 1,122 579 (543) 2,992 2,316 (676) -29.2% 6,943

Payroll-Project Manager 2,207 2,167 (40) 9,054 8,668 (386) -4.5% 26,000

ProfServ-Engineering - 1,667 1,667 - 6,668 6,668 100.0% 20,000

ProfServ-Legal Services 191 1,467 1,276 683 5,868 5,186 88.4% 17,600

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 1,989 1,989 (0) 7,957 7,956 (1) 0.0% 23,870

Auditing Services - - - - 3,870 3,870 100.0% 7,740

Postage and Freight 16 65 49 16 260 244 94.0% 775

Insurance 107 - (107) 49,156 45,026 (4,130) -9.2% 45,026

Printing and Binding - 72 72 - 288 288 100.0% 860

Legal Advertising - - - - - - n/a 3

Miscellaneous Services 140 200 60 560 800 240 30.0% 2,399

Office Supplies - 25 25 - 100 100 100.0% 300

Total Administration 5,772 8,231 2,459 70,417 81,820 11,403 13.9% 151,516

Utility Services

ProfServ-Utility Billing 5,984 5,330 (654) 22,987 21,320 (1,667) -7.8% 63,962

Electricity - General 5,819 4,750 (1,069) 17,170 19,000 1,830 9.6% 57,000

Utility - Water & Sewer 869 292 (577) 1,975 1,168 (807) -69.1% 3,500

Communication - Telephone 655 542 (113) 2,037 2,168 131 6.0% 6,500

Contracts-Other Services 24,216 27,926 3,710 107,993 111,704 3,711 3.3% 335,110

R&M-Sludge Hauling 7,845 6,385 (1,460) 28,172 25,540 (2,632) -10.3% 76,620

Maintenance - Security Systems - 146 146 - 584 584 100.0% 1,750

R&M-General (4,599) 20,833 25,432 (4,371) 83,332 87,703 105.2% 250,000

Misc-Licenses & Permits - 12 12 - 48 48 100.0% 140

Misc-Bad Debt - 292 292 - 1,168 1,168 100.0% 3,500

Misc-Contingency 321 2,350 2,029 893 9,400 8,507 90.5% 28,202

Op Supplies - Chemicals 7,062 2,333 (4,729) 17,294 9,332 (7,962) -85.3% 28,000

Total Utility Services 48,172 71,191 23,019 194,150 284,764 90,614 31.8% 854,284

Total Expenses 53,944 79,422 25,478 264,567 366,584 102,017 27.8% 1,005,800

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Year-to-DateCurrent Month

- 16 -

Agenda Page 31



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Sewer Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Year-to-DateCurrent Month

Transfers Out

Reserve - Sewer System 25,833 25,833 (0) 103,333 103,332 (1) 0.0% 310,000

Total Transfers Out 25,833 25,833 (0) 103,333 103,332 (1) 0.0% 310,000

Total Expenses & Transfers 79,777 105,255 25,478 367,901 469,916 102,015 21.7% 1,315,800

Net Profit (Loss) 35,432$       4,395$         31,037$       81,854$       (31,316)$      113,170$     -$                 

- 17 -

Agenda Page 32



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Irrigation Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Irrigation-Base Rate 19,820$       19,833$       (13)$             77,626$       79,332$       (1,706)$        -2.2% 238,000$     

Meter Fees - 83 (83) - 332 (332) -100.0% 1,000

Interest - Investments 206 - 206 344 - 344 n/a -

Total Revenue / Other Sources 20,026 19,916 110 77,969 79,664 (1,695) -2.1% 239,000

Expenses

Administration

P/R-Board of Supervisors 261 135 (126) 696 540 (156) -29.0% 1,616

Payroll-Project Manager 492 500 8 2,057 2,000 (57) -2.9% 6,000

ProfServ-Engineering - 443 443 - 1,772 1,772 100.0% 5,320

ProfServ-Legal Services - 417 417 - 1,668 1,668 100.0% 5,000

ProfServ-Mgmt Consulting 196 196 1 782 784 2 0.3% 2,346

Auditing Services - - - - 900 900 100.0% 1,800

Postage and Freight - 15 15 - 60 60 100.0% 180

Insurance 8 - (8) 3,683 3,374 (309) -9.2% 3,374

Printing and Binding - 17 17 - 68 68 100.0% 200

Legal Advertising - 24 24 - 96 96 100.0% 285

Miscellaneous Services - 46 46 - 184 184 100.0% 557

Office Supplies - 5 5 - 20 20 100.0% 60

Total Administration 957 1,798 841 7,219 11,466 4,247 37.0% 26,738

Utility Services

ProfServ-Utility Billing 444 395 (49) 1,703 1,580 (123) -7.8% 4,738

Electricity - General 56 2,500 2,444 3,265 10,000 6,735 67.4% 30,000

Contracts-Other Services 1,794 2,069 275 8,000 8,276 276 3.3% 24,823

Utility - Water-Usage 2,183 3,667 1,484 6,668 14,668 8,000 54.5% 44,000

Utility-CCU Admin Fee 4 - (4) 17 - (17) n/a -

R&M-General - 4,167 4,167 - 16,668 16,668 100.0% 50,000

Misc-Contingency - 558 558 - 2,232 2,232 100.0% 6,701

Op Supplies - Chemicals - 667 667 - 2,668 2,668 100.0% 8,000

Total Utility Services 4,480 14,023 9,543 19,652 56,092 36,440 65.0% 168,262

Total Expenses 5,437 15,821 10,384 26,872 67,558 40,686 60.2% 195,000

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Year-to-DateCurrent Month

- 18 -

Agenda Page 33



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Irrigation Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Year-to-DateCurrent Month

Transfers Out

Reserves - Irrigation System 3,667 3,667 0 14,667 14,668 1 0.0% 44,000

Total Transfers Out 3,667 3,667 0 14,667 14,668 1 0.0% 44,000

Total Expenses & Transfers 9,104 19,488 10,384 41,538 82,226 40,688 49.5% 239,000

Net Profit (Loss) 10,922$       428$            10,494$       36,431$       (2,562)$        38,993$       -$                 

- 19 -

Agenda Page 34



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Enterprise Fund - Reserves

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

Revenue / Other Sources

Transfer In - Water Services 2,500$         2,500$         -$                 10,000$       10,000$       -$                 0.0% 30,000$       

Transfer In - Sewer Services 25,833 25,833 0 103,333 103,332 1 0.0% 310,000

Transfer In - Irrigation Services 3,667 3,667 (0) 14,667 14,668 (1) 0.0% 44,000

Interest - Investments 5,027 - 5,027 17,967 - 17,967 n/a -

Total Revenue / Other Sources 37,027 32,000 5,027 145,967 128,000 17,967 14.0% 384,000

Expenses

Water Services

Capital Projects 84,905 - (84,905) 261,206 - (261,206) n/a -

Reserve - Water System - 2,500 2,500 - 10,000 10,000 100.0% 30,000

Total Water Services 84,905 2,500 (82,405) 261,206 10,000 (251,206) -2512.1% 30,000

Sewer Services

Reserve - Sewer System - 25,833 25,833 - 103,332 103,332 100.0% 310,000

Total Sewer Services - 25,833 25,833 - 103,332 103,332 100.0% 310,000

Irrigation Services

Reserves - Irrigation System - 3,667 3,667 - 14,668 14,668 100.0% 44,000

Total Irrigation Services - 3,667 3,667 - 14,668 14,668 100.0% 44,000

Total Expenses 84,905 32,000 (52,905) 261,206 128,000 (133,206) -104.1% 384,000

Net Profit (Loss) (47,878)$      -$                 (47,878)$      (115,239) - (115,239) -

Net Position as of Oct 01, 2022 1,968,100 1,968,100 - 1,968,100

Net Position as of Jan 31, 2023 1,852,861$  1,968,100$  (115,239)$   1,968,100$  

Reserve Balances

Reserve Name Beg Bal. Additions Expenses Ending Bal.

Water Services Reserve $375,083 $10,000 $261,206 $126,543

Sewer Services Reserve $1,184,102 $103,333 $0 $1,300,832

Irrigation Services Reserve $168,248 $14,667 $0 $184,818

Emergency Reserve $240,667 $0 $0 $240,667

Total $1,968,100 $128,000 $261,206 $1,852,860

$2,666

$13,397

$0

$17,967

Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Year-to-DateCurrent Month

Interest

$1,903

- 20 -

Agenda Page 35



Riverwood Community Development District Financial Statements

Shared Services

(33.33% Yr Complete)

Variance Variance % Adopted

Description Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Actual Budget Fav (Unfav) Variance Budget

ALLOCATIONS

Total Payroll - Board 2,584$         1,335$         (1,249)$        6,890$         5,340$         (1,550)$        -29.0% 16,000$         

Allocated to GF (Activity Ctr) (323) (167) 156 (862) (668) 194 -29.0% (2,000)

Allocated to Water (444) (229) 215 (1,183) (916) 267 -29.2% (2,745)

Allocated to Sewer (1,122) (579) 543 (2,992) (2,316) 676 -29.2% (6,943)

Allocated to Irrigation (261) (135) 126 (696) (540) 156 -29.0% (1,616)

 Balance in General Fund (Admin) 434 225 (209) 1,156 900 (256) -28.5% 2,696

Total Payroll - Salaries 35,282$       36,144$       862$            133,862$     144,576$     10,714$       7.4% 433,719$       

Allocated to GF (Activity Ctr Salaries) (2,075) (2,055) 20 (8,400) (8,220) 180 -2.2% (24,656)

Allocated to GF (Activity Ctr Maint.) (1,272) (1,449) (177) (4,891) (5,796) (905) 15.6% (17,391)

Allocated to GF (Env. Srv. Gatehouse) (21,208) (20,467) 740 (77,657) (81,870) (4,213) 5.1% (245,609)

Allocated J. Mercer to Water (1,715) (1,667) 48 (6,997) (6,668) 329 -4.9% (20,000)

Allocated J. Mercer to Sewer (2,207) (2,167) 40 (9,054) (8,668) 386 -4.5% (26,000)

Allocated J. Mercer to Irrigation (492) (500) (8) (2,057) (2,000) 57 -2.9% (6,000)

Allocated to Beach Club- Attendants (4,642) (6,195) (1,553) (18,323) (24,780) (6,457) 26.1% (74,339)

 Balance in General Fund (Admin) 1,671 1,644 (28) 6,482 6,574 92 1.4% 19,724

Total Inframark Contract 9,773 9,773 (0) 39,092 39,092 (0) 0.0% 117,277

Allocated to Beach Club (429) (429) 0 (1,717) (1,716) 1 0.0% (5,150)

Allocated to Water (456) (456) 0 (1,825) (1,824) 1 0.0% (5,474)

Allocated to Sewer (1,989) (1,989) 0 (7,957) (7,956) 1 0.0% (23,870)

Allocated to Irrigation (196) (196) (1) (782) (784) (2) 0.3% (2,346)

 Balance in General Fund (Admin) 6,703 6,703 - 26,812 26,812 - 0.0% 80,437

Total Insurance Expense 300 - (300) 137,666 126,098 (11,568) -9.2% 126,101

Allocated to GF (Activity Ctr) (76) - 76 (35,047) (32,100) 2,947 -9.2% (32,103)

Allocated to Beach Club (42) - 42 (19,100) (17,495) 1,605 -9.2% (17,495)

Allocated to Water (18) - 18 (8,069) (7,391) 678 -9.2% (7,391)

Allocated to Sewer (107) - 107 (49,156) (45,026) 4,130 -9.2% (45,026)

Allocated to Irrigation (8) - 8 (3,683) (3,374) 309 -9.2% (3,374)

 Balance in General Fund (Admin) 49 - (49) 22,612 20,712 (1,900) -9.2% 20,712

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

For the Period Ending January 31, 2023

Current Month Year-to-Date

- 21 -

Agenda Page 36



Sixth Order of Business 

Agenda Page 37



 

  

RIVERWOOD CDD 
January Monthly Client Report 

Florida Utility Solutions, Inc 
      

February 21, 2023 
      

Agenda Page 38



 

Monthly Report                                            

1 

Summary 
 
Operations at the facilities throughout the month were in accordance with contract and regulatory 
requirements. 

Items Requiring Approval 
 
We would ask your consideration and approval of the following: 

Request Impact Est. Cost 
Lift Station #13 PLC failed   
   

 
Operations 

• Compliance 

All Wastewater Plant requirements were met.  
• Inspection by Florida Department of Environmental Protection performed, received report.  

 
All Water distribution requirements were met.  
 

• Reuse Pump Station Status: 

Station is currently running with one filer in auto; the second filter is waiting on parts.   

• Performance metrics: 

Wastewater Treatment Plant 

• 4.995 million gals of wastewater received in January 

Water Treatment 
• 6.369 million gals of water metered at Riseley Ave between 12/21/22-1/25/23 
• 6.293 million gals of water billed from CCU between 12/21/22-1/25/23 

 
• 1.726 million gals of water metered at Proude St. between 12/21/22-1/25/23 
• 1.751 million gals of water billed from CCU between 12/21/22-1/25/23 

     Reuse 
• Received from Charlotte County Utilities 5.4 million gals of reuse   
• 4.239 million gals of reuse produced by Riverwood discharged into 

the pond 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 39



 

Monthly Report                                            

2 

Performance Metrics Current Month 
January 

Prior Month 
December 

Wastewater treated 4,995,000 4,166,000 
Sludge produced and disposed 48,000 48,000 

Reclaimed Water Produced 
(irrigation)  

18,536,000 11,696,000 

Number of line breaks 0 0 
Hydrants flushed 19 19 
Valves Exercised       10       10 
Meters Read 1134 1134 
Consumables Current Month Prior Month 
Chlorine Usage - WWTP  815 2,850 
Chlorine Usage – Irrigation 403 400 

 
 

Maintenance and Repair 
• Corrective Maintenance: 

o New cover for blowers has been ordered-90 day lead time 
o Ordered cover for bar screen 

Preventive Maintenance 
• Inspected all pump stations weekly 
• Monthly blower checks  
• Flushed water at sample locations 
• Odor control weekly checks performed 
• Plant generator inspections completed 
• Greased all pumps and motors 
• Decreased flushing  

 
Water Meters – All meters have been installed. 

• Number changed – 100%   
• Meters raised – 0 
• Meters to be raised – 0 
• Number to be changed – NA  
• Zero Usage Total- NA  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 40



 

Monthly Report                                            

3 

Health & Safety 
•       Zero LTIs and OSHA recordable incidents occurred during the month 
•  Safety training includes daily tailgate talks concerning daily events –confined  
           space, lightning safety, seatbelts, housekeeping, and other safety related concerns 

 

Personnel 
•      Mitch Gilbert – Florida Utility Solutions - Manager  
• Jason Foster and Curtis Weeks – certified operators  
• Florida Utility Solutions rotates service technician weekly at Riverwood 
• Alana Faircloth – compliance and clerical/administrative  

 

Community Involvement 
•       Visitors to the project/client  

o Mitch Gilbert – weekly  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

    
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 41



 

Monthly Report                                            

4 

Hydroguard Flushing Update 
 

Location # times Flushed Gallons Flushed 
January 

Gallons Flushed 
December 

S. Silver Lakes CT 31 142,900 154,900 
N.Silver Lake CT 31 351,900 314,900 
Club Drive 31 172,800 147,900 
Scrub Jay CT. 31 146,200 141,600 
Creekside Lane 31 700 700 
North Marsh Dr. 31 165,800 599,542 
Mill Creek  31 668,200 376,500 
Presrve Ct. 31 407,300 446,700 

Total Flushed  2,055,800 2,182,742 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Page 42



 

Monthly Report                                            

5 

 
DAYS CCU Drinking 

Water Meter 
#0011845095 

     
January 2023 

 

 
Meter 

Reading 
Flow 
Mgd 

Meter 
Reading 

High 

Flow 
Mdg 

Meter 
Reading 

Low 

Flow 
Mgd 

Remote 
Cl2 

Riesley 
Cl2 

Proude 
Cl2 

Riesley 
PSI 

Proude 
PSI 

 
Riesley Ave. 

 
Proude St. 

 
Proude 

St. 

    

1  815.236  10.744  2.722      

2 815236 0.222 10743613 0.021 2722175 0.007 2.1 3 2.9 60 60 
3 1037269 0.197 10764215 0.015 2729662 0.011 2.5 3.6 3.2 50 60 
4 1234721 0.201 10779388 0.025 2740827 0.007 3.9 4.5 4.1 52 64 
5 1436021 0.177 10803896 0.025 2748085 0.008 3.2 4.4 4.2 58 70 
6 1613231 0.638 10828476 0.059 2756267 0.029 3.7 4.5 4.3 54 64 
7  0.000  0.000  0.000      

8  0.000  0.000  0.000      

9 2251499 0.216 10887853 0.022 2785527 0.009 3.8 4.1 3.8 52 64 
10 2467208 0.229 10909482 0.025 2794261 0.010 3.9 4.4 4.2 56 68 
11 2696541 0.217 10934286 0.024 2804396 0.009 3.1 3.3 3.3 52 64 
12 2913856 0.211 10958675 0.007 2813155 0.010 3.5 3.8 3.7 54 64 
13 3124396 0.615 10965924 0.035 2823336 0.024 3.3 3.7 3.5 52 64 
14  0.000  0.000  0.000      

15  0.000  0.000  0.000      

16 3739676 0.270 11000969 0.024 2847048 0.008 3.6 4 3.9 60 72 
17 4009318 0.216 11025308 0.021 2855124 0.012 2.8 3.2 3 56 68 
18 4225639 0.206 11046641 0.017 2867421 0.014 3.2 3.2 3.1 50 64 
19 4431824 0.233 11063177 0.016 2881487 0.012 3.1 3.2 3.1 46 62 
20 4664435 0.536 11079433 0.128 2893258 0.032 3.2 3.4 3.2 58 80 
21  0.000  0.000  0.000      

22  0.000  0.000  0.000      

23 5200005 0.193 11207401 0.042 2925542 0.012 3.2 3.4 3.2 52 66 
24 5393068 0.187 11249640 0.040 2937103 0.015 3.6 3.6 3.6 48 62 
25 5580081 0.194 11289465 0.040 2951607 0.013 3.5 3.6 3.6 48 66 
26 5773814 0.193 11329290 0.038 2964287 0.017 3.4 3.7 3.6 50 62 
27 5966518 0.538 11367295 0.036 2981207 0.037 3.5 3.8 3.5 56 70 
28  0.000  0.000  0.000      

29  0.000  0.000  0.000      

30 6504992 0.204 11403303 0.018 3018251 0.020 3.6 4 3.6 54 68 
31 6709425 0.136 11420834 0.010 3038418 0.011 3.3 3.8 3.7 52 74  

AVERAGE  26.492  0.369  0.098 3.3 3.7 3.6 53.2 66.2  
TOTAL FLOW  821.130  11.421  3.038 Total 

Flow 835.589    
 

MAX 815.236  10.744  2.722 3.9 4.5  60  
 

MIN 0.000  0  0 2.1 3  46  

Agenda Page 43



 

Monthly Report                                            

6 

 

Agenda Page 44



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

TENTH ORDER OF BUSINESS 

Agenda Page 45



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10A 

Agenda Page 46



 

Page 1 of 4 
1814181v1  

3674736v1 

 
 

RIVERWOOD ACTIVITY CENTER AGREEMENT 
 

This Riverwood Activity Center Agreement (the “Agreement”) is entered into on this ___ day of 
__________________, 20__ (the “Effective Date”), by and between the RIVERWOOD 
COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT DISTRICT, an independent special district established pursuant 
to Chapter 190, Florida Statutes, (the “District”) and the RIVERWOOD COMMUNITY 
ASSOCIATION, INC., a Florida not-for-profit corporation (the “Association”). 
 

BACKGROUND 
 

A. The District owns the Riverwood Activity Center, which contains indoor and outdoor 
cultural and recreational amenities, including meeting rooms, office space, fitness facilities, tennis 
and croquet courts, a swimming pool, dog park, etc. 
 
B. Throughout the recent history of Riverwood, the Association has maintained office space 
within the Activity Center in order for the Association to provide recreational, cultural and 
administrative services to the community, most recently pursuant to that Community Development 
District Systems and Facilities Operations, Landscape Maintenance and Activity Center 
Agreement between the parties dated November 3, 2021 (the “Maintenance Agreement”). 
 
C. The Maintenance Agreement was terminated, effective March 1, 2023, but the parties now 
wish to memorialize in a separate, stand-alone agreement the rights and obligations of the parties 
related to the Association’s occupancy of the Activity Center and provision of community services.  

 
AGREEMENT 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for good and valuable consideration including the mutual covenants and 
obligations contained herein, the parties do hereby agree as follows:  
 
1. Occupancy of the Activity Center  
 
The Association shall have the right to occupy space in the Activity Center, subject to the 
provisions contained herein, and shall have access to the Activity Center and other District 
property to the extent necessary to carry out its obligations. The District shall have to right to 
designate office space within the Activity Center for use by the Association, based upon needs 
and availability.  The District may modify or re-designate the office space assigned to the 
Association at any time following reasonable notice to the Association.     
 
2. Provision of Community Services 
 
During the term of this Agreement the Association shall be responsible for the provision and 
administration of recreational and cultural activities and events for residents and members of the 
community. These duties shall include the scheduling, set up and take down for all meetings, 
cultural and recreational activities at the Activity Center.  The Association shall also provide for 
the daily maintenance of the individual sport courts at the Activity Center (tennis, bocce, pickleball 

Agenda Page 47



 

Page 2 of 4 
1814181v1  

3674736v1 

and croquet), and shall provide the District with a monthly report as to such maintenance activities 
and any other issues affecting the use or maintenance of such facilities.   
 
The Association shall provide for staffing as necessary to provide the services described herein 
and shall cooperate with and assist the District in the enforcement of the applicable rules and 
regulations of the District.  In conjunction with its administration of activities at the Activity Center, 
the Association shall collect the applicable user fees for such activities, as may adopted by the 
District from time to time and codified in the District’s Rules.  The Association shall keep an 
accounting of such user fees collected and shall remit the sum of such fees collected to the District 
on a quarterly basis. 
 
3. Community Infrastructure 
 
Except as specifically provided in this Agreement, each party shall be responsible for the 
maintenance, operation, repair and replacement of property, facilities and infrastructure owned or 
controlled by the respective party. 
 
4. Term of Agreement 
 
Unless terminated in accordance with its terms, this Agreement shall commence upon the 
Effective Date and shall remain in effect for a period of three (3) years.  The Agreement shall 
thereafter be automatically renewed for periods of two (2) years unless otherwise terminated as 
provided herein.  This Agreement may be terminated without cause by either party upon ninety 
(90) days written notice to the other party. 
 
5. Insurance 
 
The Association shall procure at its expense and maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, 
comprehensive liability insurance policies acceptable to the District, and shall include the District 
as an additional insured on all such policies.  The District shall procure at its expense and 
maintain throughout the term of this Agreement, comprehensive liability insurance policies 
acceptable to the Association, and shall include the Association as an additional insured on all 
such policies.  The parties agree that the insurance policies currently maintained by the 
respective parties are acceptable to the other party.   
 
6. Independent Contractor Status 
 
It is the intention of the parties hereto that the relationship created by this Agreement is one of 
independent contractor and contractee, and this Agreement shall not create any other relationship 
between the parties.  Unless specifically provided herein, the Association shall not hereby 
acquire any authority to bind or otherwise obligate the District in any capacity. 
 
7. Public Records 
 
Pursuant to the requirements of §119.0701, Florida Statutes, and to the extent deemed applicable 
under Florida law, the Association shall comply with the requirements of Florida’s Public Records 
laws, specifically including the following: 

Agenda Page 48



Page 3 of 4 
1814181v1

3674736v1 

A. The Association shall keep and maintain public records required by the District in
order to perform the service;

B. Upon request from the District, the Association shall provide the District with a copy
of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a
reasonable time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Florida
Statutes, Chapter 119, or as otherwise provided by law;

C. The Association shall ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential
and exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except
as authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following completion
of the contract if the Association does not transfer the records to the District;

D. The Association shall upon completion of the contract, transfer, at no cost, to the
District all public records in possession of the Association or keep and maintain
public records required by the Association to perform the service.  If the
Association transfers all public records to the District upon completion of the
contract, the Association shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt
or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements.  If the
Association keeps and maintains public records upon the completion of the
contract, the Association shall meet all applicable requirements for retaining public
records.  All records stored electronically must be provided to the District, upon
request from the District’s custodian of public records, in a format that is compatible
with the information technology systems of the District; and

E. The Association acknowledges that all information contained relating to the
Agreement are public records, as defined in Chapter 119, “Public Records” of the
Florida Statutes. No information should be labeled confidential unless exempted
under said laws.

IF THE ASSOCIATION HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO 
THE ASSOCIATION’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC 
RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE 
ASSOCIATION SHOULD CONTACT THE DISTRICT’S 
CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS, SANDRA 
DEMARCO, AT (954) 603-0033; 210 NORTH UNIVERSITY 
DRIVE, SUITE 702, CORAL SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
33071; Sandra.Demarco@inframark.com 

8. E-verify

Section 448.09, Florida Statutes, makes it unlawful for any person to knowingly employ, hire, 

Agenda Page 49



 

Page 4 of 4 
1814181v1  

3674736v1 

recruit, or refer, for private or public employment, an alien who is not duly authorized to work in 
the United States.  Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, prohibits public employers, contractors, 
and subcontractors from entering into a contract unless each party to the contract registers and 
uses E-Verify.  The Association hereby represents that it is in compliance with the requirements 
of Sections 448.09 and 448.095, Florida Statutes.  The Association further represents that it will 
remain in compliance with the requirements of Sections 448.09 and 448.095, Florida Statutes, 
during the term of this Agreement.  The Association hereby warrants that it has not had a contract 
terminated by a public employer for violating Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, within the year 
preceding the effective date of this Agreement.  If the Association has a contract terminated by 
a public employer for any such violation during the term of this Agreement, it shall provide 
immediate notice thereof to the District. 
 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement below. 

 

      “DISTRICT” 
 
      Riverwood Community Development District 
 
 
Attest: 
By:______________________  By:  _________________________________ 
Print Name and Title:_____________  Michael Spillane 

       Chair, Board of Supervisors 
    
  
 
 “ASSOCIATION” 
 
 Riverwood Community Association, Inc. 
Witness: By:_________________________________ 
By:__________________________ __________________, as President 
Print Name and Title:________________  
  

Agenda Page 50



10B 

Agenda Page 51



Agenda Page 52



Agenda Page 53



Agenda Page 54



Agenda Page 55



Agenda Page 56



Agenda Page 57



Agenda Page 58



Agenda Page 59



Agenda Page 60



by any creditor or other third party, nor may such rights or obligations be sold, transferred or 
assigned by the parties or pledged or encumbered by the parties to secure any debt or other 
obligation of theparties. 

O. Public Records

To the extent applicable, the RGA--Association shall comply with the requirements of Florida's Public 
Records laws, specifically including the following: 

A. &GA-Association shall keep and maintain public records that ordinarily and necessarily
would be required to perform the services described in this Agreement.

B. RGA--Association shall provide the public with access to public records on the same terms
and conditions as specified in the District's lawfully enacted Rules and policies, or as
otherwise provided by law, and at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter
119, Florida Statutes, or as otherwise provided by law.

C. &GA-Association shall ensure that public records which are exempt or confidential and
exempt from public records disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized
by law.

D. RGA--Association shall meet all requirements for retaining public records, and shall, upon
termination of the Agreement, transfer at no cost to the District all public records in the
possession of the RCA and destroy any duplicate records that are exempt or confidential and
exempt from public records disclosure requirements.

�All records pertinent to the District and stored electronically shall be provided by R:GA-the 
Association to the District in the following a-format� Excel. Word and PDF. that is 
compatible with the District's information technology systems . 

.L 

IF THE RC/\ ASSOCIATION HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE 
APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO RCA'S DUTY 
TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO THIS AGREEMENT, THE 
AssociationRGA SHOULD CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC 
RECORDS, SANDRA DEMARCO, AT (954) 603-0033; 210 NORTH 
UNIVERSITY DRIVE, SUITE 702, CORAL SPRINGS, FLORIDA 33071; 
Sandra.Demarco@inframark.com. 

R. E-Verify

Section 448.09, Florida Statutes, makes it unlawful for any person to knowingly employ, hire, recruit, 
or refer, for private or public employment, an alien who is not duly authorized to work in the United 
States. Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, prohibits public employers, contractors, and subcontractors 
from entering into a contract unless each party to the contract registers and uses E-Verify. The RGA 
Association hereby represents that it is in compliance with the requirements of Sections 448. 09 and 
448.095, Florida Statutes. The RGA--Association further represents that it will remain in compliance 
with the requirements of Sections 448.09 and 448.095, Florida Statutes, during the term of this contract. 
The RGA-Association hereby warrants that it has not had a contract terminated by a public employer for 

2967618v1- 4 

Agenda Page 61



Agenda Page 62



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10Ci 

Agenda Page 63



Agenda Page 64



Agenda Page 65



Agenda Page 66



Michael Dozier
Division President
11/5/2021

Agenda Page 67



Agenda Page 68



Agenda Page 69



Agenda Page 70



Agenda Page 71



Agenda Page 72



Agenda Page 73



Agenda Page 74



Agenda Page 75



Agenda Page 76



Agenda Page 77



Agenda Page 78



Agenda Page 79



Agenda Page 80



Agenda Page 81



Agenda Page 82



Agenda Page 83



Agenda Page 84



Agenda Page 85



Agenda Page 86



Agenda Page 87



Agenda Page 88



Agenda Page 89



Agenda Page 90



Agenda Page 91



Agenda Page 92



Agenda Page 93



Agenda Page 94



Agenda Page 95



Agenda Page 96



Agenda Page 97



Agenda Page 98



Agenda Page 99



Agenda Page 100



Agenda Page 101



Agenda Page 102



Agenda Page 103



Agenda Page 104



Agenda Page 105



Agenda Page 106



Agenda Page 107



Agenda Page 108



Agenda Page 109



Agenda Page 110



Agenda Page 111



Agenda Page 112



Agenda Page 113



Agenda Page 114



Agenda Page 115



Agenda Page 116



Agenda Page 117



Agenda Page 118



Agenda Page 119



Agenda Page 120



Agenda Page 121



Agenda Page 122



Agenda Page 123



Agenda Page 124



Agenda Page 125



Agenda Page 126



Agenda Page 127



Agenda Page 128



Agenda Page 129



Agenda Page 130



Agenda Page 131



Agenda Page 132



Agenda Page 133



Agenda Page 134



Agenda Page 135



Agenda Page 136



Agenda Page 137



Agenda Page 138



Agenda Page 139



Agenda Page 140



Agenda Page 141



Agenda Page 142



Agenda Page 143



Agenda Page 144



Agenda Page 145



Agenda Page 146



Agenda Page 147



Agenda Page 148



Agenda Page 149



Agenda Page 150



Agenda Page 151



Agenda Page 152



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

10Cii 

Agenda Page 153



                            RIVERWOOD LANDSCAPE & ENHANCEMENT PROPOSAL 

                                                         JANUARY 2023 

 

The proposal outline mission is to create and employ an experienced entity to service the landscape 

requirements and desires for all CDD owned properties.  An outline of these lands and areas has been 

supplied and reviewed in person.  The maintenance requirements and understanding is a part of this 

proposal and the ability to provide the labor for enhancements desired and listed below.  It is 

understood that any materials, if needed to be purchased are outside of this proposal allowing the CDD 

to purchase such needs with the tax-free exemption and avoiding any markup for such items.  This 

would include shrubs, plants, trees and ground cover, etc.  Labor & expertise for the enhancements 

would be provided in this proposal. 

-Landscaping is defined as grass cutting, trimming, blowing areas clean, trimming of shrubs and low level 

palms.  This would not include higher (10’+) tree and/or shrub trimming.  Such items would be 

considered tree trimming conducted by a tree contractor with a separate contract of understanding.  It 

is understood that equipment can be stored on Riverwood demises and if and when needed equipment 

presently owned by Riverwood for usage of transporting can be utilized. 

-Enhancements: Such a list should be developed but may include such items as, 

Shoulder road rut repair, swale drainage surface corrections, tennis court drainage bibs surrounding 

courts kept clean and functional, mulching in newly designated areas to be determined, planting of 

purchased floral items at RW entry and designated areas and gardens, periodic weeding, etc. 

 

Mid-Atlantic Property Services, LLC is the entity providing this proposal, owned and operated by Justin 

Caple.  This entity was formed in 2017 and presently provides full landscape and property management 

services to 600-700 properties weekly in the New Jersey, Pennsylvania, Delaware and Maryland market 

areas.  Primarily these properties and such care is conducted for the property stewards (Lenders, Fannie 

& Freddie Mac, their Management Companies and contractors). 

Prior to the above entity, Greenscapes Property Management LLC provided these services from 2007 to 

2017.  The new entity was started as a result of an additional service providing moving and storage for 

evictions. 

Justin Caple is the owner who has been in the landscape and property management industry for 30 

years.  He has provided lawn & property care, landscape design and installation, patio installations and 

home repairs/remodeling through these entities.  He will provide his personal expertise and experience 

along with a workforce to provide the CDD the land maintenance and enhancement desired.  He has 

acquired the necessary licenses in Florida and also maintains all proper licensing for his out of Florida 

operations.  Those licenses have been provided to the State of Florida as a part of his application process 

and approval by the State of Florida.  

This proposal is intended to be flexible to enable the CDD to better care for, enhance and control the 

appearance in a more timely and financially efficient manner. 

Agenda Page 154



This proposal is budgeted for a monthly billing of $16,000 per month.  This will include all grass cutting, 

edging, trimming, weeding when necessary and blowing.  It is estimated to provide 400-man hours and 

the equipment required.  It is estimated that the land care service, on average will require 3 days to 

complete allowing for enhancement projects to be scheduled each week.  The list of such projects 

should be delivered and prioritized.  Manager John Mercer also has projects that may require this man 

power when such projects are implemented.  This contract is reviewable by all parties as work takes 

place and projects are identified.  Landscaping is to report to the Manager John Mercer, a Board liaison 

will be established by the CDD Chairman. 

Attached are FLA documents, Justin Caple resume and the outline of CDD land areas that were supplied 

by the CDD Management office. 

All high tree trimming, pruning and tree/log removal will be performed by a qualified licensed contractor 

and is not meant to be a part of this contract.  Such work will be contracted on an as need basis.  Costs 

for labor and equipment will be vetted for such service. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Agenda Page 155



                                                           ENHANCEMENT PROJECTS 

The following are some suggested enhancement projects to CDD lands and roadways. 

-Grading along Club Drive to minimize the ponding after rains. 

-Grading along Club Drive on golf course side to allow for proper drainage. 

-Filling in and sodding of road shoulders such as Club Drive and Rivermarsh Drive. 

-Mulching of common areas of CDD lands where designed. 

-Maintain the drainage fields bordering tennis courts. 

-Removal and cleanup periodically of CDD lands in villages. 

-Future needs in new RV Park. 

-Dog park maintenance. 

-Installation of new plantings at RW entrees and Campus gardens when required. 

  

Agenda Page 156



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Eleventh Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 157



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

11A. 
  

Agenda Page 158



Tennis Court Survey 

The Riverwood tennis courts were inundated by 

hurricane Ian. We will be rebuilding the courts with most 

if not all funded by an insurance claim. During the 

discussion of the tennis court work a request was 

received to provide lighting for four of the six courts. It 

was suggested by residents at a recent meeting that we 

survey all Riverwood residents for their opinion 

concerning lighting the courts. 

The lights for the four courts will cost about $48,000 and 

we ask that you indicate your preference below. 

 

Name _______________ 

Address______________ 

 

Yes, install lights ____ 

No, Don’t install lights ____ 

 

Agenda Page 159



Agenda Page 160



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Twelfth Order of Business 
  

Agenda Page 161



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

12Bi 

Agenda Page 162



From: Frank Anastasi <riverwoodmanager@comcast.net> 
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 3:39 PM 
To: jmercer riverwoodcdd.org <jmercer@riverwoodcdd.org> 
Cc: 'Susan Puleo' <susanpuleo@riverwoodfl.org>; lsyrek riverwoodcdd.org <lsyrek@riverwoodcdd.org> 
Subject: RE: Campus Pool area  
  
John, 
  
The Grounds Committee is in the process of scoring enhancement requirements as there is much to do. 
If you recall the RCA depleted all of its 2022 operating budget funds for landscape enhancements and as 
well as hurricane cleanup costs. As of now there is no formal plan to address this area hence Rick putting 
up caution tape to keep residents from walking in the area.  
  
Frank Anastasi, CMCA, AMS 
Riverwood Community Association Manager 
941-764-6663 O  
941-625-7806 F 
Riverwoodmanager@comcast.net  
4250 Riverwood Dr.  
Port Charlotte, FL 33953 
  
From: jmercer riverwoodcdd.org <jmercer@riverwoodcdd.org>  
Sent: Friday, February 3, 2023 2:22 PM 
To: Frank Anastasi <riverwoodmanager@comcast.net> 
Cc: Susan Puleo <susanpuleo@riverwoodfl.org>; lsyrek riverwoodcdd.org <lsyrek@riverwoodcdd.org> 
Subject: Campus Pool area 
  

Hello Frank, 
  
Is there a plan for restoring the hole near the pool walkway?  Brightview removed a tree after 
Ian four months ago.  Now it's covered in yellow caution tape, drawing unwanted attention 
(photo attached).  Rick considers it a hazard due to the expected crowds this weekend.  
  
Regards, 
John 

  
  
  
  
  
 

Agenda Page 163

mailto:riverwoodmanager@comcast.net
mailto:jmercer@riverwoodcdd.org
mailto:susanpuleo@riverwoodfl.org
mailto:lsyrek@riverwoodcdd.org
mailto:jmercer@riverwoodcdd.org
mailto:riverwoodmanager@comcast.net
mailto:susanpuleo@riverwoodfl.org
mailto:lsyrek@riverwoodcdd.org

	Cover Page:  02-21-23 Riverwood CDD Meeting
	02-21-23 Riverwood Agenda
	4th Order of Business
	4A
	1.12.23 Special Meeting Minutes
	4B
	1.17.23 Meeting Minutes
	4C
	Financial Report
	6th Order of Business
	Monthly Client Report
	10th Order of Business
	10A
	RCDD/RCA Activity Center Agreement
	10B
	RCA Attorney January January 24, 2023 Response
	10Ci
	RCA Contracts
	10Cii
	Riverwood Landscape & Enhancement Proposal
	11th Order of Business
	11A
	Tennis Courts Lighting Survey Survey
	12th Order of Business
	12Bi
	Campus Pool Area Email Exchange



